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BEFORE THE
DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL
OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

' ‘ Docket HWCA 2011 4089
In the Matter of the Enforcement QOrder OAH No. 2013060325

Issued Against:

| . NOTICE OF NON-ADOPTION OF
OLGA SHAPIRO dba Pacific Oil ' PROPOSED DECISION |
Company, ‘

~ Respondent.

TOALL INTERESTED PARTIES IN THE ABOVE-REFERENCED MATTER ANlD

THEIR ATTORNEYS OF RECORD:

Attached is a copy of the Proposed Decision in the above-entitled matter submitted to
the Department orf Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) under the proVisions of
Government Code Section 11517. You are advised that DTSC considered, but did not
adopt, the Proposed Decision and that DTSC will decide the case under the provisions
of Government Code Section11517(¢c)(2)(E).

You are advised that, in accordance with Government Code section 11817(c)(2)(E)(ii),
you may submit written argument to DTSC. Your right o argue on any matter that you
feel should be argued is not limited, but you are advised that DTSC based its rejection
of the Proposed Decision on its findings regarding Respondent’s alleged transfer of
custody of hazardous waste to an unauthorized party, the alleged failure to obtain
handwritten signatures on mahifests, and the ‘penaities associated with these violations.

Any written argument that you may submit to DTSC in this matter must be received by
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DTSC at 1001.1 St. Sacramento, California, 95814, c/o Christopher Cho, on or before
January 22, 2014.

Oriignal signed by Christopher Cho
Date: L \ £

N
Christopher Cho
Attorney

For: Department of Toxic Substances Control
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Text Box
Oriignal signed by Christopher Cho


. BEFORE THE
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

n the Maiter of the Enfamm&nt Order " Agency No, HWCA 20171 4089
Against: e
‘ ' - OAH No. 2013060325

OLGA SHAPIRO, dba Pacific Oil Co.,.

ID#; CAD 983615 501,

:R&spund@at,

PR‘?GSEZD “BECISIOI"?

- Thm matter was. beard by Bric Sawyer, Adnﬁm&tratm Law Judge (ALY, Office of

ﬁdmmstra;&ve Haa:mgs (@AH) State. of @ahfonﬂag on Angust 28, 2013, a:a& Sspwmber 18,
201340 Los: An,,eies The record was dfosed and the mater submxtteﬁ for decisionat’ “ﬂze :
eemcitﬁsmn of the heating on Saptam“be: 16,2013,

Thomajs e ‘Hetler, Deputy Artornsy Getéral, sepiesenied RabertKou(Cnmplaman@

Sptit B ‘Shapiro, --E-Sg;,:ﬁpms”ehwt%@lga.Sha:pirﬁo (Responitient), wherwas present,

FACTUAL FINDINGS

SUDRRNUT I C@mplmaﬁt szgnﬁd and fed ﬂb& Bﬂﬁ:}mamem OIdBI in Tids: oﬁcml aapac:ﬁy as .
' the Wkt Clijef, Enforcement and Emergency Response Divisionof the Department of Toxic
- Substanges Ccmtmi {Department), The; Eoforcement Qrderalisges Respondent: commifted .
- five separate violations of statutes of cegulations pertaining to'bazardous wasté-
. tramsportation, specifies a schiedule for compliance ditecting Respcmiam 16 ke and refrain
fmm va.mus ACHONS 10 remgéy the: aﬁewed w@iam}nsz and; AS§ESSES-2 $28 50!7} psnalty

' 2.' Respandeﬂi mmely requﬁsteﬂ @ hearmcr to cantesf t’he Enfamsment OIdEI

3. Resmmdent does business as Pacifie 01l Company {POC) At all times

relevant, Respondent operated & hazardous waste transter facility a 913{3 De Garmo Avenye,

- Sun Valley, Cahfomm (Res‘pondent’s yard)



4, The Department authorized Respondent to transport hazardous waste by
Transpoiter Registration No. 3115, which expires on March 31, 2014,
Baclground Information

_ 5. Respondent formed POC in the early 19905 and has been its only owner. She
buys used oil from local businesses, such as gas stations and car washes. She then sells the
used oil to others, In the process, she uses trucks she owns to transport the used oil,

6. One of Respondent’s major customers is Botavia Energy LLC (Boiavia),
which is located in Ehzenberg, Arizona, When Respondent sells nsed ofl to Botavia, she
typically uses a truck driver leased from Botavia to drive the POC truck containing the used
oll to Botavia’s yard in Arizona. Respondent does not hiave the leased employee on the POC

payroll, but the sales price paid for by Botavia for the used oil is rednced ag compensation for
Respondent leasing one of its employees to drive the POC truck.

Department's Investigation of Respondent

7. On & date jn 2011 not established, the Depariment’s Enforcement and
Emergency Response Division recéived an anoaymous complaiat that Respondent was
engaged in transferring nsed oil from one truck: fo another truck without anthorization, On
April 4, 2011, .thebepattment agsigned siafl 1o investigate thai complaint.

3. Department staff inspected Respondent®s yard on May 18, 2011, On other
days, Department staff interviewed Respondent at ber home and xevanad documents she
had in, her possession pertainingto POC, Department staff also inferviewed POC employees
and other knowledgeable witnesses. The last futerview with jadividuals knowledgeable about
Respondent’s business was on June 2, 2011, The lastknown sclivity fu this Thvestigation was
on December 8, 2011, when Department inspectots conferred with Department Associate
Governmental Program Analyst Tari Patterson concerning individuals eligible to drive a
truck owned by an entity that hag 2 Department trangporier registration. No explanation was
provided for the delay in conferring with Ms, Patterson.

| 9. The Department Issued an Investigation Report concerning this acnvxty The

report was dafed and signed January 1%, 2012, butnot LSiven o Requndent nptl Japuary 27,
2012, At 1o time dzcl the Depaﬂment nolify Reshondent that it needed at exﬁ%ns on of time to
complete its mvestigation or issue the report due 0. c:?mcumstances beyand ifs control.

10 Based bn thf.s mvaqtigamon, the Depamnent concluded that Respondent had ~ ©

not-engaged in truck-tostruck transfers, However, effer imterviewing witnesses and reviewing
'avaﬁable documents, Department staff concluded that R&spondent Htad violated several
provisiats of Califortia’s Bazardous Waste Control Law, which is set forfi in Chapter 6.5 of
-Division:20-of the Healthi and Safety-Code and its sccotipanying isgulations, :



Hezardous Waste Transfer Manifests :

Respondent’s Transperter Reglistration allows her to transport hazardous wasts

inthis stats, as well as transport hazardous waste to other staies, Used ol is considered
Hazardous twaste for these purposes: When transporting hazardous waste, California Codeof
Regulations, titls 22 (Regulation), section 66263.20, requizes the parties involved in the
trapsaciion to use.and complete the Uniform Hazardous Waste Manifest (mamfest) in
‘pertinent part, as follows:

- “{"

Sdbdivision (a)r A tzaﬁsperte: (here Rﬁ@@n&eﬁt} shall Bt acoept; hazarﬁous

waste from a generator. (mg., automotive repair. shop, ‘gas station, carwash,,
ete.) unlessit is accmm@amed by 2 manifest. compiaiad and signed.

'Subdmsmn (b) Before tramsyortmg tha hazardmzs waste, the. Sranspoter: shali

aamplete signand-date the Tzanspmtar of Waste section of the manifest
ac}mawiedmg acscaptance of the hazardous waste from fhe generator, The

' tansporter shall wetinm 4 sighed copy fo the generator pric to Tettoval of the

waste from thejgenerator’s faciiity.

- Subdivision{c): The transpoiter shall eusure fhat he. Jﬁamfast accamﬁs t‘he.-' ‘

Hazardouy wiste.

Subdivision {i): The: transpﬂrte,r sha'H héve 2 'manﬁast in *ﬂza transparter B

posselsion ¥ while tidnsporting the Hazardous waste and shall release the
manifest io another transporteror fo the owner oriopesator of the: desxgnatad
hazardous wzste facility accap&nﬂ the Was fe.

Sﬁb&wfémn ey rranspcarter i:&nspomng ‘hgzardouswaste fnto or ott'of;
ifomia shall have in fhefr possession @ manifest with the generator and

- trams;aonter Sections completed.

7' Sn”bdmsmn ) Ther dransporier shall subniit to the Depari:ment alegitilecopy | |

of the manifest. rompleted by the generetor, transposter-and the party who

© . accepted the hazdrdons waste for each load of Bazaydons waste transported out

of the State, within 15.days of the Hate That the load js. accaptcd by the:

designated famkty oit the manifest:

Subdwiswn.(g):A trausporter who delivers hazardons wasie to agother -,
transporter or fo the designated facility who.accepts it shall: (1) obtain the date
of delivery and fhe handwritten signature of that rapsporter or of the cwmer or
operator-of the designated facility on the manifest; and.(2) retain one copy-of
the mamfesb, and {3) give the remaining copies of the manifest to the
accepiing transporter or designated i:'acﬂzﬁy

(33



12.  The manifest form has several duplicate pages. The information wriiten on the
top copy transfers to the underlylng coples. Afier the generator completes the information on
the top copy pertinent to it, the bottom page containing the duplicate information is torn off
and kept by the generator, The transporter cornpletes the information on the top copy
pertinent to i5. Upon delivery 1o another iransporter, orthe facility that ultimately acoepts the
hazardous waste, the transporter tears off the bottom copy and retains it. The remainder of
the form, in most cases containing the original signatures, is received by the facility that
ancepts the waste. If that facility is located in Californis, it Is required to send a copy of the
manifest to the Department. If the accepting facility is located in another state, It is expected
10 also send in a copy of the manifest to the Department (aud coraply with the laws of its
own state) but the Department acknowledges it has no jurisdiction over out-of-state facilities,

13.  Manifests sent fo the Department are received, logged and the information is
maintained in its Hazardous Waste Tracking System (FIWTS).

14.  ‘When Department staff conducted their fnvestigation descdbed above, they
requested Respondent 1o provide copies of mantfosts for her hazardous weste transports.
~ Respondent advised them that many of her manifest copies had been Jost or destroyed after a
dispute with her vff-site siorage provider, However, she produced coples of over 1,500
manifests for transports that had ocemrred fn October 2000 and November 2009, June and
July 2010, and January and February 2011, All of these Invoices involved transactions where
Respondent purchased used oil from local businesses and sold it to Botavia.

15.  Department staff researched Respondenit’s activity inputted into the HWTS
and found that approximately 98-percent of the manifests she provided to them during the
investigation had riot been Toceived by the Departiment ai required by Regnlation 66263.20.

16.  With regard to those transactions, Respondent used the method described
above for transporting the hazardous waste. Specifically, when the used oil was purchased
from a local business (the generator), the local business would complete and sign the
generator part of the manifest, keep a copy for itself, and give the rest of the manifest form to
the POC employee (the transporter), who transperied fhe used ol to Réspondent’s yard in 2
truck owned by Respondsnt. A Botavip employes, usnally Alexander Delgon, was leased by
Respondent to drive fhe POC fruck ¢ontaining the nsed ofl from Respondent’s yard to
Botavie’s yasd-in Arizona. For the trans;aouons i1t Ootober and November 2009, the onty
transporter listed on the manifests was POC, For the remalning transactions in 2010 and”
2011, the POC employee who Brst picked up the used ofl signed the manifest as a Hirst
transpozter on behalf of POC; the Botavia employee who was leased by Respondent to drive
the POC truck to Arizona smnad the manifes: 48 a secondary transporter on behalf of
Botavia. Upon actival af the Botavia yard in Atizons, a Botavia employee, Usually Christian
Sanchez, signad tha mamfest of ‘bahalf of Bofavm a8 tlm designated facility accepting the

nged oil.



- 17.  According to Respondent, the secondary transporter information on the
mantfest was only completed in Arizona and never in California. Respondent testified that
was done because the truck would have to go throngh two weigh stations on thewayfo
Arizons, and signing the manifest in California before entering Atizoha would compiicate
that process. Moreover, it is cleat from her testimony that Regpondent nndersiood that
Botavia was not 4 registered transporter in California 2nd therefore that it could not legally
transport hazardous waste in California. However, Respondent faifled to present any credible.
evidence from Botavia or other sonrces verifying when, Wwhere or undér what circumstances
‘the manifests were signed by Botavia asthe secondary transport\:r

18, Respemdent fostified that sherwas fold by Mr: Sanchez.of Botmvia that it was
sénding copies of the marifeststo/the Department for the irgnsactions with POC, Although
the HWT'S Bas record of over 500 manifests sent-from, Botaxia in 2009, there is no ofhet
persuasive or.credible evidence indicating that Botavia regularly’ sent. mamfasts to the,
Department for hazardous wasté it accapted from Respondent. Respondent: Qresenwd e
credible evidence indicating fhie sae; When Department staff interviswed M. Chiistian
over the télephone during their: mvasngatmn, ‘he-was vague about the manifests, stating Dnly
thathe “elieved’” Botaviasentoopiss of the manifests Lﬁ the generalor and POC, 2nd that he
‘*fhougnf’ ccapmé were also.senrita the Départment, Under these-ciftumsiaices, i} was ot
established that Respendant *had reasogabie assurance: that Betavia, was regtﬂaﬁy Seudmv
comyleted: ma;mests ba{:k: toithe Department, ‘

19 R&Sp(mﬁent prasented ErE axcexp’s from & Wideo & lr,ammg session on tHe )
De:parﬂment‘s website pastaining to the: anianifest camplehon process. The Departinent traingr
alf¥igesthat for hazardous waste. bemg*transpaﬁad to another state, the generatorand
transporter are required to sbrid the ahanifest to the Depattmient, FoWever, theiftainer dlso
indicates thatthe generatorand transporter: donot have o sead a capy-of the manifest to the
Depastmexit 37 the}; know theouitofstate ?famiity accepiing the.irzardous waste is alse’
rearming 5 completed sanifestto the Depirtmenf, In'thavcase, the Department lrainer
shdiicated thetthe State d@e@%t needts have dr.zphc&ta copies of the'§ime docment,

20, Remﬂa%wn 662&3 20, subdmsmn (g}(lL Tequiresa’ trampmtex {bere POC)that
delivers ‘hazardous waste 10 another transpotter or to'a faciity thiat accepts the hazardous

~waste'to “pbtain the handwntten sxgnamrﬁ of the transporter or of the:owner or operator of

 fHie designated Tacility on the menifest” For ll thé transactions in question between POC.

.. .and Botavia from 2009 through 2011, the manifests in guestion:contain g digital version ofa e

“handwritten signatare from both M. Deleon as the transporter of'behalf of Bo%.a‘;fia, as well

" as the digital version of  handwritien signatuse from M. Sanchrez.on behalf of Botavid =

the facility accepting the. hazardous waste. Based on the wniformity:ip how the-digital - ,
signatuies for both individuals wéte affixed to ihe manifests, it appears that those s:tg:aawres ‘
were domte b;z machine and plaged on the mianifests well after the events in guestion, Le.,
transéer of possession. of the used ofl. Complainant contends the manifests st contain
original handwritten signatures, and thai the digital copies do not comply- wifh fhe revulamon

i



Hazardous Waste Anral Reporis

21, In addition to submitting manifests to the Department, registered transporters
are also required to submit two types of annual reports,

22.  Health and Safefy Code section 25250.10 requires every registerad transporter
of used oil to submit 2 report on or before March 1 of each year regarding the used oil
transporied during the preceding calendar year, specifying the shipping deseription of the
used o, the vohume of eachtype of used oil, and {he facilities to which the used vil was

transported,

23, Respondent failed to submit a repott for the calendar year 2008, and
Respondent submitted annual reposts for the celendar jears 2009 and 2010 in February of
2012, which was well after the deadline and after the Departinent concluded its Investigation.

24.  Health and Safety Code section 25250.29, subdivision (f), also reqires
registered transporiers to submit 2 report-on or before March 1 of each year regarding used
ofl transported out of state dixing the preceding calendar year when they are the listed
transporter on fhe manifest,

25.  Respondent did not timely subuit an out-of-stats transport report for the
calendar year 2010.

26,  Complainarit alleged that Respondent also fafled to timely submit these two
types of anmual reports forthe calendar years 2011 and 2012, but Complainant later found
that the Depaztment had fimely recéived those reposis and therefore conceded thers was o
violation for those two years. :

27.  Respondent points o the Used Oil Hauder Repmrt form thyt the California
Department of Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) also requives used oil haulers to
coraplete and submit on a quarterly basis, The form instructs used ofl haulers o send
completed forms to the Departiment (although they are advised fo contact CalRecycle with
quiestions), Used oil hawlers ate also instracted to-“[o]nly-report the destinations 1o which -
your compaiy-trapsports. Do et inchude oi] transptaft%l from your facility fo another

-destination by-another hauler.” (Bold in angmal) CalReayole’s peport orm tncindes a place
v disclose used 0il haulsd out-of-stats, Department staff iestified that if one of its registered
transporters fimely submitted quarterly reporis to CalRecyéle (which the Department
received), it would not have to subxait to the Department the above-desoribed reports
tequired by Mealth and Safsty Colle sections 25250.10 and 25250.29..

- 2B Reqpondent testified: that she-did not filo the s reportt deseribed above
' ‘hecause she wasmisled by the instructions.on CalRecycle’s:mepott form.: She testified that
because many of fhe.transaciions i guestion involved a secondary havier, 1.e., Botavia, she
read the CatRecycie form ingiructions as not requiring her i submit the Calf{acycle forms.
Since she believed she did not have to-submit quarterly reports to CalRecycle, she festified



she believed she did not have to submit the annual repozts to the Departraent. Respondent’s

stated understanding of the CalRecycle form instruction is dubious and lemploys circular
logic. Forexample, POC was:the only transporter listed in the 2009 manifests. As forthe
other years, Respondent testified that she viesved POC a5 .the transpotier of the used ofl into
Arizona, but she ditl riot establish When or if Botavia actually took over the transportation,
hefore the oil reachod Betavia's yard in Echrsn’berg In any event, the: CalRecycle forms were
separate and distinct from the annual reports-that had to be submitted 1o the Department:
‘Since Respondent failed to timiely submitted quarterly reporfs 1 CalRecyle, she failed to
éstablish thatshe was exempt frow filing the anaual. Feports wu:h the'Department.

i’"mnspmfmg Hizardous Waste »

28 Heait{b and SafetyCode section 25163, subdivision-(){1), ;pmhlbxts fransferred’
custody of hazardous waste to-a iransporter who doea mot hold a vaiid registration issued by
the Department. In this case, althbugh Resgandem is & egistersd transPortecc with the’
Depamnent ‘Botavia 1s-not ‘

4

B Bw:xmmg ‘in af feast.§ anuary 2010, ang’ cmntmmng 'themaftar, Resp@ndent

tianspoied. thie tised ofl she-sold fo Bitavia By the fietiod previously described. Conplaipant |

contents ity method vidlited the law becatiserthe driverof the truck was ypically an
srigloyss of Botavia, and thdt Respondent was theretors aﬂemng iranisportation of
hazerdongiwiste'in Californiaby an infegistered fransporter, The fidentity of the’ ‘transporter
oftheused ol while in Arizonaisnot f jssite in thig case, beganse. the Depaztmant dpes:nat, |
have jutisdiction over that. acmty in.ancther state,

- BL, Re:spandent sgtabhsbﬁd “#:hﬂt E@C wasithe transpurter of tha nsed of from er
yard to an uedetermined location in Astzona'(see Faotital Findings’ 17 & 28). This js pecatise
she leased fhie Botavia diiverto n‘anSpom the, o1l Foom her, yard, and ofherwise accepied
resyensibmty for the ledsed dfiverin 4 miatnerthat demonstrated thisarrangement was nota

&ubﬁezf&wa_ For-example,: P@C ami Botavxa had & WiTiten coniract f@rma]mmg POCs Jeasé of ' -
‘a}i‘aoiavza exployee totransportused-oil purchdsed from BOC by Botavia; Botviawas - - . -

compessated by POC for use uf the leased employee: The waste was tranSpertad onlyin &

. marked POC track and trdiler that were appropnate&y régistered fo.POC. The Botavia dnvers
L wha-sérved asleased. empl(}yeas, maznly Mr, Delecn, werejnsured by POC. Sioee 2009,
. "POC enrolled Mr. DeLeon-in the fedlersl Department of Tmnsport&tmn*s (DOTS. Ranﬂom :
- Diug'and Aleohet Testivg Brogram, &nd he holds amedical card requized by DOT. M.
- DeLeonis also reg.swred through PGC in the Califormia. Departientof Motor Vehicles,

(DY) Pull Notics Program. POC makes sure that Me..DeLeon js dandormly frag tested, and

thaithe takes and passes 3 driving test. Mr, DeLeon haslserpassed the federal Tmus?artamea ST
Seetisity Administeation {T8Ay ‘dleatance process tirongh POC. The:federal government ~

recoguizes thiat.2 motor-carrier, {imrer may “iave muiﬁple-empioyers, pmvzdcd they comply.

- with régulatory requirements. (See, e.g,, 49 C.F.R.§.39%.63-(1998).) Tn this case, it was
.. . established that Respondenthas so. oomphed mﬂa zespect o the ‘I@ased ethployees from |

Botavza



32. - The Department employees who testified agreed that the Department regulales
the registered: transporter, not the individuals who drive the vehicles used in transporting the

hazardous waste.
Monetary Penalty Caleulations and Schedule for Compilance

33.  The Bnforcement Order includes a scheduls for compliance, which requires
Respondent to take, or refrain from, certain aclions in response 1o the alleged violations,

34,  Other than arguing that the schedule for compliance Is unnecessary,
Respondent did not Identify or establish that any pasticular paxt of the schedule for
compiiance is unreasonable or unrelated o the alleged violations.

35, The Enforcement Order also includes a total monetary penalty of $28,500,
Complainant caiculated the monetary penalty by analyzing the vatious factors specified in
Regulations 66272.60 throngh 66272.69. The base penalties calculated were $6,000 for the
alleped faifure to submit manifests to the Department; $6,000 for the alleged faflore to obtain
bandwritten signatures on the manifests; $6,000 for fhe alleged failure to timely submit the
two types of annnal reports (Complainant oousidered the alteged failures i this regard as
involving just one category); and $10,500:for the alleged transfer of hazardous waste to an
unregistered transporter, Complainant found no aggravating factors existed to wasramt
- Increasing the base penalties, and o mitigating factors to wartant a reduction, Complainant
has several years of experience andlyzing the regulations for such monetary penalties and in
reviewing the calenlations performed by those he supervises, In this case,’ Complamant S
caloutations and methodology wers also xeviewed and.approved by his supervisor, -

. 36, Jtwasestablished by a preponderance of the evidenes that Complainant
correctly calentated the amounts in guestion and reasonably exetcised digeretion in analyzing
and applying the factors identified in the above regulations in making his calculations,

37, 'The fact that the Department erronieously alleged Respofident faited to timely
submyit both annual reports for 2011 and 2012 dues not warrant a redoction in the monetary
penaity. Complamant*s caleulation for thet pne.category of violation assumed there were
multiple vislations, 1.6., for eath report natfimely received. It wag established that
Respondent failed 1o tnnely stibinit btk amal rep@rts for other cdlendar yeats, 80 tb:s
categmy sfill mValvecI miﬂtxple violatwns

W
7
i
W



LEGAL CGONCLUSIONS
Jurisdiction and Burdens

1. Health and Safety Code secucm 25187 authorizes the Department 1o order
action nbeessary to correct violations and assess a. monetary penalty when the Depariment
determines that any person has violated gpecified provisions of the Health and Safety. Cods?
of any permit, tule, reguidtion, standard, or qumrement issued or.adopted pursuant therétp,

2. | Ap-agency seeking civil remedies and penalties againgt a-party holding a
ficense of. registration bears the burden of proof. {(Brown v, Cily of Los Arzgezes (2002) 102

- Cal. Ap;:Ath 155, this, cabe, Compimnthas the bden df proof!

%, Evidenos Collesection 115 states ‘thalt, exceptas otherwise provided by law,,
the standdrd.in 4 civil action is proof by 4 preponﬁeranﬂ:e of the evidenice. As there is no Taw:
fequiring otherwiss, Evidence:Cods section 115 appliss here. The mors.exdcting cledr,and
convincing evidence standard apphes only to actipos involving'professional izcensmq rights
‘or permits, Thé fevocation of 2 noupiefessional ar. tocypational Hoense, like Respondent’s,
reiired Oy the preponderancs of the evidence stagdard, (mports Performm;:e v. Dept, oF
Consumer Affeirs; Bur.. ofﬁufamoﬁvg Repair (261 1) 2071-Cal. Apy: »4th 911 917} ‘

R&sp@?zdem‘ S.Statiiredf Dimations. Aroumem‘

4A.  Pursuazt. ’m section 25185, Subdmsmn (&, the Daparment nay conduct dn

Inspection OF & pérmitted facility during a reasonable hour, When the Department conducts

such anifispection, the Deparfment “shall providé.a: popy-of the, fnspechan report” tothe ,
facﬂxty within five:days from the ‘preparation;of thie report; ! bit not Jater than 65 days afier the-
inspection. (§.25185, subd. [e)(2)(A)) Fhe time. penipd may e extended a8 a esulbof

. CIECHMELATCES bayﬁmd the De;aartmem 5 comtghl, idtnotifies the fnvolved facility within 70
‘ éays frog th date ofthé inspectivn dnd pmvzﬂes the i mﬁpﬁmor;, 1eport to the facility operator

i a: ‘tzmely manner 2fterthe teason for the delay mc;ﬁ (825185, subdl. (c)(fZ)(B) !

4B, Ras;aondant argies fhis action is nme-barred bacause the Depaﬂmenr excesded

 the-time lirnit it had to issue'a veport affer its inspections. The Department statted its
' mvastwatzon on May 18, 2011, and concluded it on June Zs. 2011. The. mspechon TBPOTt WaS:

dated. .lannary 12,2012, butnot given to.Respontient epfil Tanuary 27, 2012, The Department
failed to notify Respondent:that it needed to extend the fitme Hnit due fo circumsianoes

* . beyond ifs control. Thus, the Depastment inexplicably failed to providea copy of its
.. nspection, report (dubbed by the Department as the “Ixz"vestlgmun Report”) well more than

200 tiafs after the mspectmrx was concluded.

o' AT further statuiory references, are 10 the Health and Safety Code uriless otherwise
noted. ‘



4C.  The issue turns on whether the time limit specified by section 25185 is
directory or mandatory, If it is directory, it does not operate as a Jimitations period for
purposes of a civil or administrative enforcement action such as this, I it is mandatory, it
does. The California Supreme Court in People v. Cobb (2010) 48 Cal.4th 243 discussed three
distinet factors in determining whether a statutory time Hmit is directory or mandatory, One
facior is whether the statute specifies the time limit is jurisdictional. (/d.} Silence on that.
point 18 not dispositive; unless the Legislature clearly expresses a contrary intent, iime Hmits
are typloally deemed to'be directory. (Id., at p. 249.) Another factor Is whether the
Legislature includes a penalty or consequences for non-compliance; failure to do so typically
demonstrate 3 statule Is directory. (Id., at p. 250.) Finally, 4 thoe limit is divectory if the
purposes of the statute in question would be dei?eated by holding the time Bmit mandatory,

(Id., 2t p. 250.)

4D,  In this case, the factors enumerated in Cobb Welgh in fa.var of the timme JHmit in
section 25185 being deemed directory. Section 25185 does not specify whether the time [imit
is jurigdictional, However, section 25185 provides no remedy or penalty for missing the time
Yk, Viewsd fu combination, these two factors provide no evidence that the Legislature
intended the thwe limit to be mandabory. Finally, the prtposes of the statute would be
defeated by holding the time Landt mandatory, Section 25185 and its aceompanying statutes
are part of a broader scheme of the Hazardous Waste Control Law, set forth in Chapter 6.5 of
Division 20 of the Health and Safety Code, allowing the Department and local agencles to
inspect, Investigate, and seek redress for hazardous waste violdtions. Deernleg section 25185
to be mandatory, and therefore operate as a statwle of Hmitations, would fmstrate that
puzpose. Moreover, viewing the time Hmitas mandatory would be inconsistent with the five
year Hmitations petiod expréssly provided it Code of Civil Procedure section 338.1 for civil
and administrative actions {0 enferce the Hazardons ‘Waste Control Law set forth iu Cliapter
6.5, whidhincledes section 25185,

4E. - Under these circumstances, the time limit in section 25185 is directory, and
does ot pperate as a Hmitations period. The Department®s action in this matter was therefore
not time-barsed by its failure to timely provide arcopy of its inspecﬁtm repcrt to Respondent

Canse for the Sckedule of Corr;plzance and Pemzlg’

L Resp@ndent wcrlaé:ed R&D‘ﬁl&ti@ﬂ 665363 2@ subdmsmn {f), in ﬁi}a‘t begmnmg in
-QOotober 2009, and continning'ihrough, atdeast Februsry 2011, Respotident fafted to submit
conpleted capies of imanifests 1o the ‘Departmentwithin 15 days:after hazaidous wasle was
transporied oul-of-state and necapted by the designated famﬁty on the mianifest, in this case
Botavia located in Arizosa. Botavia tid not regulatly retutn.completed manifests 1o the
Department for the used oil it purchaseﬂ from Respondent, and Respondent failed to
establish that she had reasonable assurance or proof fiom Botavia that it was doing so.
Therefore, the training fustructions provided by the Depariment-on.its website ddwsxng
. Iransposters ¢ not: send 3 i cofapleted: thansporter faanifests when they know the. dosignated
out-of-state facility Is.returming them 10 the’ Department does not sxonerate: ‘Respontient from

this vipdation, (Factnal Findings 1-18.)

10



64A.  Respondent violated Regulation 66263.20, subdivision (g}(l), in that
beginning in October 2009, and continuing through at least February 2011, Respondent
failed o obtain the handwritten signature of the secondary fransporter or of the owner.or
operator of the designated dccepting facility on approximately 1,500 manifests for used oil-
u‘-ansportad From Respoadem"s yard to Botavia’s yard it Arizona. (Factual Findingg 1-32.)

6B, Regulanon 66263.20, subdivision. {g)(1}, vequires that the initial or sole

transporter obtdin a “bandwriiten Signature” of the secondary transporter or accepting facility
. ou the manifest. Subdivisions (g (£)(2) and (3} 0f the samie statute Tequire the initial or sole

 transpostsr to retain ope copy of the manifest, and give the Temaining: copies of the manifest.
to the actepting transporter or facility abthe fime of transfer. When consi idering the ovesall
process of completing the maiiifests estabTished by Reguiafion 66263.20, it becomes clear,
thatthe Legislature’s infent was to instre that the acteal individuals involved in the process
affized their handwritten signatores to the.manifest at.the actual fime-of transfer, Whether
that'is:done by ik, stamp-or digifized reproduction, what Seexs trucial in this process.is tha
the representation of the 1de>nt1ty of the frvolved mcimdueds, throvight thefr handwritten
signatuzes, be done at the tme possession of fheused 0il s transferred.

BC. T N . Slaczzm (20113 196 CaliApp At 1636, 1t way held that an electmmc T
digital signature doesnot com;ﬂy with Blections Cods section 100 mgaxdmg hovwan, :
i dividus] Signsapeiifion to place an tnitiative on the baflat. Juthat tase, the ot fomd that
1he Tiepislatureis, ganﬂzal apiproval of theuse of dlectropio Sighatures in-comumercial.and
govemmemal ransactions, through Govemment Code Sect;zon 16.5:and the Usiform
‘Electropic Transactions Act(UETA) (Gt C@ée? £16331 et sed.d, did not trimp the
‘pattioular réqiitremeint of Elections Code deciion 100 hatihe signatuves be “personally’
affixed™ 1o the pefition. (Id.,at p, 1646-1647.) The-court Was alsa cpticerned that allowing
glectronic: swnamres would ﬁﬁechvaly éliminate petition circulators present duzmg the
sighatuze praeass, which-would appearo make the PrLCESS: m@re\susceptrblﬁ to frand,
p@tﬁﬁ'ﬁl&ﬂy umﬂarmttmg the! mtegnty o e ﬁ:iectom. pmcess. {4, at 'p. 16537) v

6D, In fhik case, itway uot vSi&thﬁ@d #hat exthamhe driver, Mr. L‘xeLaGn, or
Botavia’s opurator Mr. Sanchez, signed zhf; manifests-or affixed the digifized copy of their
signatures-on the manifests a1 the time that possession of the used oil was transferred, Rather,
.the evidence indicates that Mr, DeLeon s:mply accepted the mgnifests. at the time he togk the

POC truck out of Respondent’s yard, and that the manifesis were not signed by either himseif o
" or Mit. Sanchez uptil after the'usad of] was delivered to Botavia's yard. That processisat - '

odils with the tatent of Rogulation 66263, 2. No evidence suggests anyone otber than Mr.
DeLeon drove the trucks or anyone other tham . Sanchez accepted delivexy once the uged
il arrived at Botavia’s yard, Nonetheless, placement of digitized signature reproductions on-
amandfesis well after-the-fact makes the overall process snsceptible fo frand. In this case, if
required a. heamg e determme what acmal"ly happened

5



6E, Respondent’s.argument that she is not responsible for how Botavia employees

signed the manifests is of no moment. According to her, Mr. DeLeon was lessed by her (o
actually trangport the used ofl, and that she was responsible for him. She could have easily
required M, Deleon to sign the mantfests when he took the POC trucks ouf of her yard, or

when he entered Arfzona and Botavia became the secondary ttansporter. She also could have
Insisted that Mr. DeLeon obtain My, Sanchez’s mgnature once the POC truck arrived at
Botevia’s yard. Respondent’s argument is not persuestve that the federal B-SIGN Act (15
U.S.C. § 7001(a)), which is similar to the aforementioted UETA, allowed Botavia’s
employees o use digitized reproductions, of their signatures in order to coraply with
Regulation 66263.20, Similar to the Slocum case, g,eneral statutory approval for using
electrouic Slgnaiures must give way when dolog so Is inconsistent with the underlying intent
of the statute in question, Here, Regrlation 66263.20 requues the signatures be affixed at the

time of transfer, Thal was not done,

6F,  This violation is deemed & technical ona. As stated above, no evidence
suggests the used oil was accepted by or tradsferred to individuals other than those listed on
the involved 1aanifests. The undedtying purpose of Regulation 66263.20, subdivision (g), in
patt, is 10 create a paper-trail thap the Department can nse to monifor or recomstruct the
{ransportation of nsed oil from oxe batity to another, In this case, the wnderlying purpose was

met,

7. Respondent viclated section 25250.10, in that she did not tiwely submit a
report for the calendar years 2008, 2009 and 2010 regarding the used oil Respondent
transported, (Faohzal Findings 1-28.) -

8 Respondent violated sevtion 25250,29, subdivision (8, iu that Respondent did
nof timely sebmit an ovt-ofstate traﬂsport report for the calendar year 2010, (Factual

Findings 1-28.)

9. . Respondent did not violate section 25163, subdivision (a)(i), in that it was not
established by a preponderanss of {he evidence that shis. txansfsr:ed costody of hazardous
waste to 4 transporter who didl nut bold e valid registration issned by the. Iepartment.
Respondent leased 2 Botavinemployee o drive the used off in POC. Squpmmt from her yard

-and fate Azizona, Regpondent todleall kown steps neoessaty 1o be legally liable for the
actions of the Jeased driver, Depariment siaff who testfied in this matter conceded that the
Department doesnot regulate the indivitual driving the transportation equipment, but rather
the registered trangposter dnvolved in'the transaction. Tt was notestablished when, or if, the

 leased Botavia smployee legally transtémed possessmn of the used off to Botavia, cither as a
- secondary transpoztsr-or accepling facility, In:any ovent, section 25163 does ot apply to

transportactivity in other states, and Complainant fafled 10 establish thet Botavia was

factually or 1ega]1y trangporting the “tiseci ofl whilein Caliﬁomm {Faciwal Fmﬁmgs 1-82.)

12
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Monetary Pena.fzjy Caloulations and Schedule for Compliance.

16A. The monetary panal‘y was calculated 2ssuming Respondent violated the fivs
discrete areas discussed above i Legal Conclusions 5 thm_ugh 9, which are snumerated in
the Boforcement Order as paragraphs 2.1 through 2.3

108, As concluded zbove, howsver, it was pot established that Respondent violated
paragraph 2.3, p&m‘tammg to alleged transferrsd custody of hazardous waste £0 an
wnregistered transporter in violation of section 25163, subdivision (2)(1). A reductioh of the
$10,500: moneiary penalty attribated to that alleged: violation is therefore warranted.

10C, While it was esz:abhshed that Respondent vidlated paragraph 2.2, pertaining fo.
failnre to obtain handwritten Signatures on the manifests-at the He of transfer in violation of
Regulation 56263.20, subdivision.{g), that vivlation wasofa technical nature and. dasemng
of mitigation. Purspant o Regulation 56272.62, subdivision. {b}, Complainant correctly
deteriined that the potentidl forhatm from that vidlation was “Minftmal " However,

w 'Catnp}amant ihcokreotly: Jetermined that the extent.of Resp@ndem s deviation from that
© wiclation'was “Majer.” Pursuant to-Regulation 66272:562, subdivision () 21C),

Resporident’s teihnioal violaietiwas “Wirimal "l that §§ “eviates somewhat from fhe
reduirement];. and.... _‘g fuﬂctmns garly as intended, brtnotiss wel as f all 915?13101}5 had-
beenmet” The penalty matrix set fortliin Rngulamr; 56272:6%, subdivision (), sets &
penialty auoiit 6T, (nothme‘) for awiolation, iinvaivmwmmai potentialharm awd & yeinos
gxtentof damaﬁon, Therefore, a redugtion of thie $6:000 pidnetdry: penalty atiributed o this
vw’latwn dswamanted.

108, Vsder these cirbumsiances,, the tetai munetary penalty should be reduc:@d ﬁ:om
$28 500 to $12:000.to actount fox e tyeg.above-degcribed ari;us::mfsnts (Factual Findings -
375

. “The schadule for mmp}zanoa % Gontained inthe. anarcemant {}rder ‘iseotion

3, and the varions remedial acticns ordered fo'be takenare Enmerated ds pamgtapns 3.13

throngh 3:1.13. Respondentdid not identify of establish that any particular part of theé
schednls for compliance is tiressonable or unreldfedito the. sliéged violations. However,

. . paragraph 3.1.4 orders Respondentita mmedxaiely ceaSe transfeming custody of hazardous:
." ywaste 10 unrecustered Aransporters.: $ince if wes fot established that- Respondent violated -

.+ section 25163 subdivisios (a)(1); pertaining o trausferred: oustody. of hazarddus wasieto an "
W, . | mmregistered transpoiter, there s no-facteal or legal basis forparagraph 3,14 10 remdin fn the

© . ‘Beftreement: Order. Although that, ‘paragraph simply rei

i o Tembein as Al enforceablerpart. of the Enfortement Order mayTead to future confision
- . regarding the ouicome-of this.case. A modification of the Enfofoament Qr&cr in this: regard is
.thexefore warranited. {Factual chimgs 1- a"]) ' : . -
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ORDER

The Enforcement Order against Olga Shapiro, dba Pacific Oil Co., is modified as
follows: (a) the total monetary penalty is reduced 1o $1,2,000, which is payable tothe
Department within 30 days of the effective date of this order; (b) paragraph 3.1.4 is stricken
from the Schedule for Compliance. In all other respects, the Bnforcement Order is affirmed.

DATED: November 4, 2013 : . g T '
Original signed by Eric Sawyer

ERIC SAWYER
Adrnginistrative Law Judge
Office of Adminisirative Hearings
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